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OIC Logo
Triangle

Signifies the strength and represents 3 roles of the office which are supervision,
promotion and development and the protection of the rights and benefits.

Two triangles that form a square

Signifies 4 main stakeholders that has important role to the development of Thai
insurance business, the enterpriser of insurance business, the insured, people,
and the Insurance Intermediaries and a symmetrical square signifies the impartiality,
the credibility and the justice.

The gold object in the middle is a tall gold lighthouse
that lights the way

It shows the roles and duties of the office of insurance commission in being careful,
supervising, supporting, promoting and recommending the way in solving
insurance-related problems.

Gold & Blue

Signifies the fact that the office is the organization that drives the insurance business.
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To provide knowledge and create public confidence that
insurance system can serve as a stable mechanism for
risk management and in preparing for sustainable future.

MISSION

1. To build confidence and accessibility to
insurance system
2. To strengthen stability in insurance system
3. To develop laws and create comprehensive
policyholders’ benefit protection system
4. To promote the development of the
infrastructure of insurance system
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Roles and
Functions
of the OIC
1. The Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)
The Insurance Commission Act has been effective since September 1, 2007. As a result, the
Department of Insurance has changed its status to become the Office of Insurance Commission
(OIC), an independent state agency and a juristic entity with a mission to regulate and develop
insurance business and to protect the insurance benefits and rights of the people, similar to the
Bank of Thailand and the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Under this Act, the structure of insurance business regulation is as follows:
1.1 The Insurance Commission is responsible for the formulation of policies for the supervision, promotion
and development of the insurance business. The Commission comprises the following members:

1. Mr. Somchai Sujjapongse

Permanent Secretary, the Ministry of Finance,
Chairman of the Insurance Commission
(Since October 2015)

Mr. Somchai Sujjapongse graduated with a Ph.D. in economics
from the Ohio State University, U.S.A. and the Joint Private and
Government National Defense Course of the National Defence College
(Class 20). He is knowledgeable and experienced in economics and
fiscal service. Before his appointment to the position of Permanent
Secretary of Finance, he served in many key positions in the Ministry
of Finance such as the Director-General of the Custom Department,
the Director of the Fiscal Policy Office and the Director of the State
Enterprise Policy Office. He has always devoted himself to education.
He used to serve as a special lecturer in economics for several private
and state universities. He currently serves as member of the boards of
many agencies such as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Krungthai Bank Public Company Limited, PTT Public Company Limited
and Director of Thai Airways International Public Company Limited.
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2. Ms. Chutima Boonyaprapas

Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Commerce
Commission Member

3. Mr. Veerathai Santiprabhob
Governor of the Bank of Thailand
Commission Member
(Since October 2015)

4. Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul

Secretary-General of the Office of the Securities
and Exchange Commission
Commission Member
(Since May 2015)

17

Ms. Chutima Boonyaprapas obtained her master degree in
economics from Western Michigan University, USA and finished National
Defence College Course Class 2550. She has extensive knowledge and
specialization in economics. Prior to her appointment as Permanent
Secretary, she held important positions in the Ministry, including
Director General of the Department of International Trade Negotiation,
Director General of the Department of International Trade and Director
General of the Department of Internal Trade. Apart from her key
position at the Ministry of Commerce, she currently holds her
important commerce-related positions such as Advisor to the
Subcommittee on Trade Rules and Regulations, Industrial Council of
Thailand and Advisor to the Board of the Council of Marine Merchandise
Exporters’ Association of Thailand.

Mr. Veerathai Santiprabhob graduated with a Ph.D. in Economics
from Harvard University, U.S.A. He has an extensive knowledge and
experience in economics, finance and banking and had served as senior
executive in various private and state agencies in the financial and
capital market. Before his appointment as the Governor of the Bank
of Thailand, he was the Assistant Managing Director for Business
Customers Strategy at the Siam Commercial Bank Public Company
Limited and Deputy Manager for Organizational Strategy Planning, the
Stock Exchange of Thailand. Apart from working at the Bank of Thailand,
he is currently engaged in several social and educational projects such
as a director for Thammasat Department at the Anandamahidol
Foundation and a director of the Mae Fah Luang Foundation.

Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul graduated with a master degree in law
from the University of Bristol, the United Kingdom. He has an extensive
expertise and a long experience in capital market and had served in
many private and capital market-related agencies such as the director
of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the director of the
Kasikornthai Bank Public Co., Ltd., Chairman of the Board of Kasikornthai
Securities Public Co., Ltd., Chairman of the Executive Committee of
Kasikorn Asset Co., Ltd., an advisor to the Managing Director of Muang
Thai Life Assurance Public Co., Ltd., an independent director of the
Big C Supermarket Public Co., Ltd., board member of the Thai Institute
of Directors, board member of the Federation of Thai Capital Market
Organizations and board member of the Association of Investment
Management Companies. Currently, he also serves as a member of
the State Enterprise Policy and Supervisory Board.
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5. Mr. Umpon Wongsiri

Secretary-General of the Consumers
Protection Commission
Commission Member

6. Mr. Phaiboon Siripanoosatien
Commission Member by Expertise
(Business Administration)

Mr. Umpon Wongsiri obtained his master degree in Development
Administration (Public Administration) in the field of Public Policy and
Project Management from the National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA). As an expert on legal affairs, he has continually
contributed to social development and public charity activities,
especially the creation of the network for the protection of consumers
in the public, private and civic sectors. He used to hold several
important positions in the Ministry of Justice, including SecretaryGeneral of the Anti-Corruption in the Public Sector Commission (ACPSC)
and Inspector General of the MOJ. Apart from his present position as
Secretary-General of the Consumers Protection Commission, he also
holds positions of chairman and senior expert member of committees
and subcommittees of both public and private organizations such as
the Committee for the Consideration of Market Dumping and
Subsidizing (CCMDS), International Trade Department, the Committee
of the Institute of ISO Certification and the Committee for the National
Credit Data Protection, the Bank of Thailand.
Mr. Phaiboon Siripanoosatien graduated with a master degree in
government from Sukhothai Thammathirat University and completed
the National Defence College course in 2012, government administration
and public law and public economic management for senior executive
course at the King Prajadhipok’s Institute. He has extensive experience
and expertise in business administration and used to serve in important
positions in several government and private agencies such as a director
of the Metro Star Property Public Co., Ltd. and the Electricity Generating
Public Co., Ltd. Currently, he is the Chairman of the boards and director
by expertise of many agencies such as the Chairman of the Executive
and Investment Committee of the Eastern Water Resources Development
and Management Public Company Limited, a director of Finansia Syrus
Public Co., Ltd. and the Thai Volunteers for National Defense Foundation,
the Royal Thai Army.
Mrs. Tarisa Watanagase received a Ph.D. (Honorary) in Economics
from Keio University, Japan and a diploma from the National Defence
College of Thailand. She is a knowledgeable person and an expert in
economics and finance. She used to serve in many key positions in
the Bank of Thailand such as the Governor, the Deputy Governor for
Financial Institution Stability, Assistant Governor for Financial Market,
Assistant Governor for Financial Institution Policies and Assistant
Governor for Financial Institution Regulation and Audit.

7. Mrs. Tarisa Watanagase

Commission Member by Expertise
(Economics)
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Mrs. Jotika Savanananda graduated with a master degree in
Business Administration from Sasin Graduate School of Chulalongkorn
Unviersity and master degree in Psychology from the University of San
Francisco, U.S.A. In 2007, she received a diploma from the National
Defence College of Thailand. She is an expert in banking and finance
and is currently served as the chairman of the board of Talis Asset
Management Co., Ltd., the Chairman of the Audit Sub-Committee of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the director of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand and the director of the Central Pattana Public Co., Ltd.

8. Mrs. Jotika Savanananda

Commission Member by Expertise
(Finance)

9. Mr. Sompol Kiatphaibool

Commission Member by Expertise
(Insurance)

10. Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich

Commission Member by Expertise
(Accountancy)

Mr. Sompol Kiatphaibool received a master degree in Economics
from the Fairleigh Dickinson University, U.S.A, a diploma from the
National Defence College of Thailand in 1988 and an honorary Ph. D.
in Business Administration from Western University. He is an expert in
economics and insurance and had served in several important positions
in the Ministry of Commerce such as the Permanent Secretary of
Commerce, the Director-General of Internal Trade Department, the
Director-General of the Business Registration Department and the
Director-General of the Department of Insurance. Currently, he serves
in several key positions in the government and private agencies such
as the member of the National Legislative Assembly, Chairman of an
advisory board of the Economic Deputy Prime Minister and the
Chairman of the Board of the Thai Vegetable Oil Public Co., Ltd.

Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich received a bachelor degree in accounting
from the Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy and a diploma in
auditing from Chulalongkorn University. He also completed a course in
Executive Management Program from Ivey School of Business, University
of Western Ontario, Canada and the Leading Professional Services Firms
Course from Harvard Business School, U.S.A. He is a knowledgeable
and has extensive experience in accounting from more than 35 years
and had served in key positions in several private agencies such as
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Jaiyos Audit Co., Ltd. and Price WaterhouseCoopers Consulting Thailand Co., Ltd. Currently, he is a certified auditor
(Thailand) and serves in management positions in several agencies
such as the President of the Federation of Thai Accounting Professionals
Under the Royal Patronage, Director for accounting expertise of the
Market Dumping and Subsidy Scrutiny Committee of the International
Trade Department, the Ministry of Commerce) and member of the
General Insurance Fund Board, the Ministry of Finance.
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11. Mr. Achporn Charuchinda

Commission Member by Expertise
(Law)

12. Mr. Suthiphon Thaveechaiyagarn

Secretary-General, Office of Insurance Commission
(Since November 2015)

Mr. Achporn Charuchinda graduated with a bachelor degree in
law from Thammasat University and is a Thai Barrister at Law of the
Legal Training Institution, the Thai Bar Association. He also completed
from Class 46 of the National Defence College of Thailand. He is a
knowledgeable and an expert in law and used to serve in many legal
and political positions such as the Secretary-General of the Council of
State, an ordinary member of the Constitutional Drafting Committee
of the House of Representatives and the Senate and member of the
Financial Institution Policies Committee. He currently serves as the
member of the Constitutional Drafting Committee, the Board of the
Bank of Thailand, the Board of Directors of the Tobacco Monopoly of
Thailand, the Board of PTTEP Public Co., Ltd. and the Economic and
Social Development Board.

Mr. Suthiphon Thaveechaiyagarn graduated with a Ph.D at the
Pennsylvania University, USA., under the Ananda Mahidol Scholarship
and received a diploma from the National Defence College of Thailand
(Class 2549). He is an expert in law and had worked in several important
positions before having been appointed as the Secretary-General of
the Insurance Commission such as the Chairman of the Budget and
Fiscal Disciplinary Board, the Commissioner at the National Broadcasting
and Telecommunications Commission, Secretary-General of the Election
Commission and Deputy Secretary of the Supreme Court. Besides, he
also gives lecture in law in state and private universities. Currently, he
serves as expert members of several boards such as Chairman of the
Anti-money Laundering Committee, member of the Financial Institution
Policies Board, Deputy Chairman of the Life Insurance Fund Board and
Deputy Chairman of the Non-Life Insurance Fund Board.

1.2 Office of the Insurance Commission
		 Office of the Insurance Commission is a government agency which is not a part of the government and
is not a state enterprise. It is a juristic entity with a duty to operate according to the policies, set forth by the Insurance
Commission and core missions that include regulating, developing and promoting insurance business to ensure
efficiency, transparency, trustworthy and protection of public interest. Followings are the major strategies of the
Office of the Insurance Commission.
		 1. To build public trust and access to insurance system
		 2. To build stability and competitiveness
		 3. To develop protection of insurance-related benefit of the public
		 4. To develop insurance infrastructure
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OIC Structural Chart
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1. Thai Insurance Business Overview in the Period of 12 Months in 2015

(Mil. Bht.)
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Insurance Premium
January-December 2011-2015

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Life

328,897

390,517

441,372

498,752

533,211

Non-life

138,755

179,530

203,121

205,248

209,197

Total

467,652

570,047

644,493

704,000

742,408

%
35.00
30.00
25.00
20.00
15.00
10.00
5.00
0

Insurance Business Growth Rate
January-December 2011-2015

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Life

11.03

18.74

13.02

13.00

6.91

Non-life

13.03

29.39

13.14

1.05

1.92

Total

11.62

21.90

13.06

9.23

5.46

Source : Office of Insurance Commission
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1.1 The Growth of Insurance Business
Premium
Income
(Mil.Bht)
GDP (QoQ%)

2014
Q1

Q2

Q3

2015
Q4

Jan-Dec

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Jan-Dec

-0.50

0.40

0.60

2.30

0.70

3.00

2.80

2.90

2.80

2.80

Total

185,362
16.29

170,243
10.63

164,656
4.54

183,738
5.84

704,000
9.23

184,622
(0.40)

178,968
5.13

175,171
6.39

203,647
10.84

742,408
5.46

Life Insurance
YoY%

133,698
23.48

120,173
14.93

117,128
7.88

127,753
6.50

498,752
13.00

132,325
(1.03)

128,248
6.72

126,537
8.03

146,102
14.36

533,211
6.91

51,664

50,070

47,528

55,985

205,248

52,297

50,720

48,634

57,545

209,197

1.07

1,50

(2.85)

4.15

1.05

1.23

1.30

2.33

2.79

1.92

Non-Life
Insurance
YoY%

		 The Gross Domestic Product (GDP) of Thailand in the fourth quarter of 2014 grew 2.9% which was quite
close to that in the previous quarter. The non-agricultural sector expanded 4.2%, as a result of growth in construction,
whole sale and retail sector, acceleration in investment of government sector and economic stimulus plan. However,
the agricultural sector still saw contraction as a result of drought that caused the Thai GDP in 2015 to grow 2.8%.
(Source: The Office of National Economic and Social Development Board)
		 The total direct insurance premium earning of Thai insurance business during a period from January to
December 2015 was 742,408 million Baht, a growth of 5.46%, compared with the same period in the previous year. Of
this total earning, 533,211 million Baht, representing the growth of 6.91% was direct premium income of life insurance
business while 209,197 million Baht, representing the growth of 1.92% was direct premium earning of non-life
insurance business, compared with the same period of the previous year.
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No. of Policy
Total
YoY %
Life insurance
YoY %
Non-life
Insurance
YoY %

2014
Q1

Q2

2015

Q3

Q4

Jan-Dec

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Jan-Dec

14,266,059 16,560,381 15,534,506 14,821,825 61,182,771 16,121,258 16,247,338 13,157,918 16,252,527 61,779,041
7.97
-1.57
10.04
11.05
6.40
13.00
-1.89
-15.30
9.65
0.97
1,609,063
9.00

1,603,555
-0.34

1,708,650
27.46

1,646,015
20.93

6,567,283
20.77

1,875,086
16.53

1,556,252
-2.95

1,022,852
-40.14

1,613,827
-1.96

6,068,017
-7.60

12,656,996 14,956,826 13,825,856 13,175,810 54,615,488 14,246,172 14,691,086 12,135,066 14,638,700 55,711,024
7.84

-3.90

8.21

9.93

4.90

12.56

-1.78

-12.23

11.10

2.01

		 A total number of policies as of December 2015 was 61,779,041 or an increase of 0.97% over the same
period of the previous year, of which 6,068,017 was life insurance policies, representing a decrease of 7.60% and
55,711,024 was non-life insurance policies, representing an increase of 2.01%.

1.2 Performance Output

		 The performance output of insurance business in 2015 showed a net profit (loss) of 66,939 million Baht,
a growth of 2.56%, compared with the previous year. Of this, a total of 617,248 million Baht was the performance
output of life insurance business, representing a growth of 6.83% and a total of 560,831 million Baht was expenditure,
representing an increase of 5.82%. As a result, the life insurance business gained a net profit (loss) of 49,974 million
Baht or an increase of 14.64%. Meanwhile, the non-life insurance business has a performance output at a total of
159,480 million Baht or a growth of 2.03% while the expenditure was recorded at a total of 138,707 million Baht,
representing an increase of 5.56%. As a result, the non-life insurance business saw a total profit at a total of 20,773
million Baht, a decrease of 16.61% and a net profit (loss) of 16,965 million Baht or a decrease of 21.73%.
Life Insurance
Types

2015
(Mil. Bht.)

Non-life Insurance

% of
Change

2015
(Mil. Bht.)

% of
Change

Total
2015
(Mil. Bht.)

% of
Change

Insurance Business Earning

617,248

6.83

159,480

2.03

776,728

5.81

Expenditure

560,831

5.82

138,707

5.56

699,538

5.77

Operational Profit

56,417

17.97

20,773

-16.61

77,190

6.13

Net Profit

49,974

14.64

16,965

-21.73

66,939

2.56
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Operations and Significant Development in 2015
The Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) operates under the principal guideline for
supervising and promoting the overall insurance system development to achieve high
efficiency, transparency, credibility and to protect the public’s insurance benefits and right
as follows.

Strategy 1: To build public confidence and access to insurance system
1. Building of public knowledge and understanding on insurance (Insurance Literacy)
The Office of the Insurance Commission created knowledge and understanding in insurance so that the people
at all levels would have knowledge and understanding on insurance and their rights under insurance policies and
realize the value and benefits of building security for their life and their families by using insurance system as the
tool for risk management. It is the goal of the OIC to promote the public to have welfare that provides better
protection and benefits by focusing on main types of insurance such as life and non-life insurance, the protection
of rights under insurance, compulsory auto insurance, the Protection for Motor Vehicle Accident Victims Act B.E.
2535, (and its amendment) and micro insurance, etc. Followings are the implemented activities.
1.1 Integration of cooperation with various government and private agencies to build knowledge and promote
the right of the people under insurance system through trainings as follows.
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		 (1) Police Forces and Police Cadet Students
			 Organized training sessions for commissioned investigation police officers of the 1st Region Provincial
Police Headquarter in 9 provinces, i.e., Samut Prakarn, Nonthaburi, Pathum Thani, Phra Nakhon Sri Ayutthaya,
Ang-Thong, Chai Nat, Lopburi and Saraburi, totaling 1,071 officers between March 9-11, 2015 at the Classic Cameo
Hotel, Phra Nakhon Sri Ayutthaya.
			 Organized 2 training sessions for 2nd year police cadet students, totaling 280 students (140 in each
group) on November 26, 2015 at the Royal Police Cadet Academy, Sampran District, Nakhon Pathom.
		 (2) Teachers and staff of the Office of the Non-formal and Informal Education
			 Organized training session on insurance for teachers and staff of the Office of the Non-formal and
informal Education in Bangkok and surrounding provinces, totaling 250 persons on Friday, May 8, 2015 at the
Ballroom of Bangkok Palace Hotel, Bangkok.

			 Jointly organized a training session with the Office of the Non-formal and informal Education for
community leaders in Saphan Soong District, totaling 40 persons, on Friday, May 29, 2015 at the Masjid Ibadutraoman,
Saphan Soong District, Bangkok.
			 Jointly organized a training session with the Office of the Non-formal and informal Education for
community leaders in Klong Samwa District, totaling 40 persons on August 11, 2015 at the Health Center, Klong
Samwa District, Bangkok.
		 (3) School and university students
			 Implemented Insurance Youth In School Project with the view to create insurance knowledge,
especially life insurance and insurance protection under the Protection for Motor Vehicle Accident Victims Act and
organized a contest and prize presentation among school/educational institutions and teachers who integrated
insurance subject into their teaching curriculum. At the event, scholarships were also given to students who have
good educational performance and implemented project to provide insurance knowledge in various forms such as
music, drama and talk show as follows.
Year

2012

2013

2014

2015

No. of schools participating in contest

513

554

603

639
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				 There were 2 types of contest, i.e., school/educational institutions and student and each type
consisted of 3 levels, i.e., provincial/district level, regional/Bkk level and national level.
				 The 1st, 2nd and 3rd winners in national level received the prizes at the “Insurance Day”, featuring
the “Prime Minister’s Insurance Award” presentation event on September 14, 2015 at Sirikit Convention Center.
			 Organized training session on insurance knowledge for teachers, parents and students of the
Rattanakosin Sompoch School (Rachathan Upatham), totaling 500 persons on Sunday, May 10, 2015 at the Meeting
Hall of the Rattanakosin Sompoch School (Rachathan Upatham).

			 Organized 3 activities to promote motor insurance knowledge and road safety in universities in 2015
as follows.
				 1) The 1st activity to promote motor insurance knowledge and road safety at Bangkok University
under the concept of “Behind Your Safety, We Care” on Thursday, October 15, 2015 at the Surat Osathanukruo
Library, Bangkok University, Rangsit Campus. The total number of participating students was 500.
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				 2) The 2nd activity to promote motor insurance knowledge and road safety at Rajabhat Chankrasem
University under the concept of “Behind Your Safety, We Care” on Wednesday, November 11, 2015 in front of the
Management Science Building, Rajabhat Chankrasem University. The total number of participating students was 500.

				 3) The 3rd activity to promote motor insurance knowledge and road safety at Sri Prathum University
under the concept of “Insurance Crossroad” on Thursday, November 17, 2015 at the Multi-purpose floor, under
the Sri Pathum University Building. The total number of participating students was 400.

		 (4) Members of the Federation of Consumers Protection Clubs, Bangkok Metropolis
			 A lecture on “Protection for Insurance Consumers” under the 3rd Consumer Protection Network
Development Training Course”, organized by the Office of the Consumer Protection Board. The participants were
government officials, employees of private agencies and members of the consumer protection network, totaling 40
persons on June 18, 2015 at the TK Palace Hotel, Chaeng Wattana Rd., Bangkok.
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			 Organized a lecture on “How To Get the Most Out of Insurance” for 150 members of the Consumers
Club Network of Laad Prao District on October 13, 2015 at the Meeting Hall of Laad Prao District Office.
			 Organized a lecture on “How To Get the Most Out of Insurance” for 176 members of the Consumers
Club Network of Minburi District on October 21, 2015 at the Meeting Hall of Minburi District Office.
		 (5) Community Financial Institute and the People Network
			 Organized a lecture on “The OIC and Auto Insurance” for a group of 100 Legal Advisors of Judicial
Clinics in the Central and Provincial Regions on December 24, 2015 at Mida City Resort, Chaeng Wattana.
1.2 Organizing activities to promote insurance in the central and provincial regions in conjunction with various
government and private agencies as follows.
		 Organized a launch and a press conference
of a project to promote insurance knowledge and to
conduct a campaign to prevent and mitigate road accident
during the “Songkran Holidays” in 2015 and New Year
2016. The event was held on April 8 and December 22,
2015 at the Office of the Insurance Commission. During the
event, free motorcycle maintenance service, oil change
and light bulb were provided before the holiday travelers
went off to their destination on Songkran and New Year
Holidays.
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		 Organized activities to launch the “Songkran Zero Death” project on April 9, 2015 at the Moh Chit Bus
Terminal and on April 10, 2015 at the Hua Lampong Train Station. Also the “New Year Zero Death and Disability”
project was also launched on December 29, 2015 at the Moh Chit Bus Terminal and December 30, 2015 at the Hua
Lampong Train Station by the “Don’t Drive Drunk Foundation” with the goal to reduce the number of road accidents
during a long holiday.
		 Organized the “Campaign to Promote Road
Safety During New Year Holiday” activities in conjunction
with insurance industry in order to promote the
government’s policy to build safe driving culture in Thai
society and to encourage Thai drivers to be conscious of
safe driving and road usage and get insurance protection
for all cars under the Motor Accident Victims Act, B.E. 2535

		 Provided insurance-related assistance in all provincial areas during the Songkran and New Year Holidays
which included the coordination and meeting with insurance networks in monitoring areas as well as assisting the
public in claim process when incident occurred and the setting up of operation centers to prevent and mitigate
accidents during Songkran and New Year holidays. These centers also provided information and advice on insurancerelated issues and cooperated with government offices in the area by joining the road safety campaign and public
relations activities to provide knowledge on insurance to the public through provincial media such as 240 local radio
stations belonging to the Radio Thailand, Mass Communications Organization of Thailand and local radio stations. A
total of 3,636 vinyl cutouts and signs to publicize the information were also put up along with the transmission of news
through communications channels of insurance volunteers, news broadcasting tower, police stations and government
offices.
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1.3 Joined activities of various government and private agencies as follows.
		 The 15th Money Expo Bangkok 2015, organized by the Office of the Insurance Commission in conjunction
with Life and Non-Life Insurance Fund and Counter Service Co., Ltd., between May 7-10, 2015 at the Challenger
Hall 2-3, Impact Muang Thong Thani Convention Center.
		 The Government’s Bank for the People event between June 27-28, 2015 at Hall 3, Impact Muang
Thong Thani Convention Center.
		 The Set in the City event, organized by the Office of the Insurance Commission and the Life and Nonlife Insurance Fund to provide knowledge on insurance planning by certified financial planners, attached to the Thai
Financial Planner Association between November 19-22, 2015 at the Royal Paragon Hall, 5th fl., Siam Paragon
Shopping Center.
1.4 Coordinated and cooperated with local network agencies to provide knowledge through the projects to
create knowledge and understanding of insurance among the people in the provincial region through training and
lecture sessions for people of different careers and groups such as housewife group, cooperatives, farmers,
community leaders, village chiefs, village public health volunteers, civil defense volunteers and agricultural
cooperative members, etc. The MoU to promote cooperation between government agencies and the OIC was also
signed with such agencies as the Local Administration Promotion Department, Agricultural Promotion Department,
Cooperatives Promotion Department, Correction Department and Community Development Department. The total
number of participants in the training courses in 2015 was 76,250.
1.5 Organized training sessions to provide knowledge to people who were interested in becoming insurance
volunteers to enable them to disseminate the acquired insurance knowledge and to provide advice on how to
contact the local insurance offices for the local people. The total number of volunteers who were trained and
registered as insurance volunteers in 2015 was 10,200. The volunteers with outstanding performance of duties were
selected at the provincial, district, regional and national levels to receive awards at the “Insurance Day” during the
presentation of the Prime Minister’s Insurance Awards 2015 on September 14, 2015
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1.6 Promoted agency’s image by developing a 3 year public relations plan and strategies and the plan to
disseminate knowledge through the media in 2015. The goal was to provide correct and appropriate information
to related parties and the public in general in order to build public confidence and access to insurance system
through the following activities.
		 Organized 9 press conferences, i.e.
			 The face-lift of insurance business to welcome the
year 2015
			 Claim management in the big flood of 2015
			 The project to prevent and reduce road accident
during Songkran Holiday of 2015
			 Economy Moves Forward, Insurance Business Advances
			 A donation for the construction of Royal Health
Center and the provision of Micro-insurance 200 to the Border Patrol
			 Police Headquarters.
			 Steering Through Economic Crisis: Insurance Business
			 OIC forecast life insurance business in first half of
2015 will grow 2.25% and 4.73% in the whole year.
			 Vision on Thai insurance business by Dr. Suthiphon Thaveechaiyagarn, the Secretary-General of the
Office of the Insurance Commission
			 Guideline for advertising senior insurance product
		 Organized the “3rd OIC Fosters Relationship with the Press” at Kanchanaburi Province

		 Organized a 45 second advertising spot contest by
inviting university students to submit their works about
compulsory auto insurance under the theme “Motorcycles and
Compulsory Motor Insurance”. The process included a visit to
educational institutions that are interested in the project to provide
knowledge and understanding on insurance, especially the
Compulsory Auto Insurance Act to students and the public who
used motorcycles as the main means of transportation. After
that, the students may apply the acquired knowledge on
Compulsory Auto Insurance to their creative works and submit
them for the contest. The total number of works submitted for the contest from 15 educational institutions
nationwide was 174.
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		 Published brochures and guidebooks on compulsory auto insurance as well as 25 episodes of
1 minute-long TV documentary to provide insurance knowledge to the public.

2. The development of regulatory process and promotion of insurance product development
2.1 Annual Rice Farming Micro-insurance 2015 was develop to be the risk management tool for the rice
farmers all over the country and to lessen the government’s budget burden. In this scheme, the farmer would
co-pay the premium at 60-100 Baht/Rai and the government will subsidize the rest of the premium total. The
farmers who are the customers of the Agriculture and Cooperatives Bank get extra cash subsidy of 10/Rai from the
bank. The scheme covers the entire country which is divided in 5 zones as follows.
Description
(Bht/Rai)

Areas with
Areas with
the lowest
very low risk
level of risk

Areas with
low risk

Areas with
medium risk

Areas with
high risk

Premium

115.00

220.00

330.00

420.00

450.00

Premium inclusive of revenue
stamps and VAT

124.12

236.47

355.24

451.54

483.64

Amount of co-payment by farmers

60.00

70.00

80.00

90.00

100.00

Amount of government subsidy

64.12

166.47

275.24

361.54

383.64

		 If loss has occurred from natural disaster such as flood, heavy rainfall, draught, storm, typhoon, winter
cold, frost, hail or fire, the farmer would get 1,111 Baht/Rai compensation and in case of loss from pest or spread
of disease, farmer would get 555/Rai compensation. Such loss must occur in the disaster emergency areas, announced
by the provincial governor and the insurance policy must be in force. Insurance company shall pay compensation,
based on the actual loss report, certified by the District’s Disaster Victims Assistance Committee.
		 The Office of the Insurance Commission, in cooperation with the Fiscal Policy Office, the Ministry of
Finance, the Agricultural Promotion Department, the Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives and the General
Insurance Association of Thailand launched the “Annual Rice Insurance 2015 Project” on Friday, May 15, 2015 at
Ang Thong Pattamaroj Wittayakhom School, Ang Thong Province. The event was presided over by Mr. Sommai
Phasee, the Minister of Finance. As of December 11, 2015, a total of 172,738 annual rice insurance certificates,
covering the farming area of 1,512,119.50 Rai, were sold.

Annual Report 2015

39

2.2 Developed the “Credit Life Insurance” for the target group of persons who apply for loans from commercial
banks and wish to get life insurance coverage according to the condition for approving the credit application. This
type of policy provides protection for all types of credit, based on the sum-insured and the Mortgage Reducing
Term Assurance (MRTA). This is another alternative protection that the people can get in order to get credit
insurance. The project also helps regulate insurance business through market mechanism. Such project also helps
the bank customers to reduce cost and to choose insurance company they want to buy protection from. Initially,
the premium will be reduced by 12.5% according to the reduced commission and refinance cost. The insured is
entitled to change the juristic entity who provided the loan without having to cancel or surrender the policy which
has been on sale since April 2015.
2.3 Followed up and reviewed the sale process of senior insurance product to eliminate public misunderstanding on the product such as the reviewing of the product’s advertising message through all types of media such
as newspaper, TV, radio and social media. The effort also included the improvement of senior product’s sale
process and documents such as sale presentation, application form, policy, policy summary, conversation during
sale process and sale confirmation.
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3. Expansion of micro insurance
In order to promote a sustainable growth of micro insurance product, the Office of the Insurance Commission
joined hands with the insurance industry to provide knowledge through training and activities under the project
“Micro Insurance for People 2015 Campaign” as follows.
1) Set up insurance exhibition zone to promote micro insurance at the “Village Fund Potential Promotion
Event” 4 times in the provincial regions as follows.
		 The 1st time: At the “Village Fund Potential Promotion: Build Opportunity and Happiness to the Village
and Community Event” at the Central Plaza, Khon Kaen in the northeastern region on March 25, 2015.
		 The 2nd time: At the “Village Fund Potential Promotion: Build Opportunity and Happiness to the Village
and Community Event” at the Sri Vachirachote Meeting Hall, Rajabhat Phibulsongkram University, Phitsanuloke province
in the northern region on May 1, 2015.
		 The 3rd time: At the “Village Fund Potential Promotion: Build Opportunity and Happiness to the Village
and Community Event” at the Nam Prao Ballroom Meeting Hall, CS Pattani Hotel, Pattani province in the southern
region on June 10, 2015.
		 The 4th time: At the “Village Fund Potential Promotion: Build Opportunity and Happiness to the Village
and Community Event” at the Exhibition Hall 105, BiTech Bang Na, Bangkok on August 21, 2015.
2) Organizing training/lectures/panel discussion on “Micro insurance 200”
		 Organized lectures on the roles and duties of the Office of the Insurance Commission, the protection of
insurance- related rights of the people and micro-insurance policy at the “Sor Kho Bor Roadshow” under the title
“Consumer Protection Policies and Integration of National Consumer Protection Efforts” on May 28, 2015 at the
Thanaromya Room 1, on the 3rd fl., of the Dhamrindhana Hotel, Trang Province. The participants were members of
the Office of the Consumers Protection Board and local people.
3) Organizing the following campaigns to promote “Micro insurance 200”
		 3.1 Organized activities to disseminate knowledge on “Micro insurance 200, to launch public relations
campaign of the OIC and to provide consultation on insurance at the “Thailand’s Consumers Protection Day 2015”
on April 30, 2015 at the Sapphire 101-107 Room, the Impact Forum Building, Impact Muang Thong Thani.
		 3.2 Organized activities to disseminate knowledge on “Micro insurance 200, to launch public relations
campaign of the OIC and to provide consultation on insurance at the “Annual Rice Insurance 2015” launching event
on May 15, 2015 at the Ang Thong Pattamaroj Wittayakhom, Ang Thong Province.
		 3.3 Organized activities to disseminate knowledge on “Micro insurance 200 and to launch public relations
campaign of the OIC at the “E-Claim Award” presentation ceremony 2015 on Wednesday, May 27, 2015 at the at
the Pullman King Power Hotel, Bangkok.
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4) Launched the “Holiday PA (Micro insurance)” with special premium rate of 100 Baht/year in order to broaden
the public access to insurance product and to provide risk protection during New Year holiday season for travelers who
travel to visit their hometown. The policy provides coverage from December 15, 2015 to January 15, 2016. A number
of 16 life and non-life companies participated in the project
The total number of micro insurance policies sold as of December 2015 was 848,785 of which 108,711 was
the Micro Insurance 200, 40,719 was life insurance micro insurance policies and 40,719 was non-life micro insurance
policies. The total premium income was 1,068,744,976 Baht.

4. Promotion of research and study for development of health insurance system
The Office of the Insurance Commission hired the Health Systems Research Institute (HSRI) to conduct a
research and study on health insurance development for a period of 1 year with a goal to study the problems and
hurdles for private health insurance system to jointly operate the Thai government’s health insurance and foreign
countries and to give advices on how to improve the efficiency of private health insurance system and how to
design private health insurance products that are responsive to the needs of the people and are in compliance
with the overall health insurance in Thailand as well as aging society. The HSRI has already delivered an interim
report at the due date on December 22, 2015.

5. Improving good governance and standard practice of insurance company
The OIC implemented the following activities in order to improve the good governance in insurance industry
with the objectives to ensure that insurance companies realize their duties and responsibility and to have good
understanding on the overall insurance business and to create public confidence and good image.
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1) Organized the “Relationship Day” for senior executives of insurance companies with the objectives to
communicate the direction of regulation process and the expectation of the OIC that insurance companies must
have “good governance”. The event which was organized between March 5-6, 2015 at the Swissotel Le Concorde,
Bangkok, also provided opportunity to exchange views and opinions on how to appropriately develop the
supervision of insurance companies.
2) Organized a seminar to provide knowledge and understanding on rules and regulations of the OIC for
members of insurance companies’ Audit Committee, personnel in compliance department and internal control
unit of insurance companies on June 24, 2015 at the Radison Blue Plaza Bangkok.
3) Organized a seminar on “IT Governance” to promote good governance and efficient risk management in
insurance companies to members of insurance companies’ audit committee. The speakers were invited guests from
the Office of Standard, Electronic Transactions Development Agency (Public Organization) (ETDA) and senior
management from private sector who spoke about “IT Governance” in various aspects such as system security,
management of customers’ information, IT for electronic transaction and vision on investment of Thai financial
institution. The event was held on December 8, 2015 at the Swissotel Le Concorde Bangkok Hotel.

6. Development of distribution channel to enable accessibility by all levels of population
In realizing the importance of the development of insurance distribution channels to ensure that the public
receive quality services from professional personnel, the Office of the Insurance Commission, therefore, developed
the process of issuance and renewal of agency and broker license as follows.
6.1 Supervised a total number of 497,934 agent/individual brokers, registered in the OIC database. Of this,
275,209 was life insurance agents, 20,797 was non-life insurance agents, 93,119 was life insurance brokers and
108,809 was non-life insurance brokers. The following chart shows statistics on license examinations, issuance and
renewal of licenses and registration of universal life and unit-linked insurance in 2015.
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No. of person No. of License No. of License No. Of Persons Registered
taken exam
Issued
Renewed
Universal Life Unit-Linked
229,232

116,080

83,052

1,979

3,197

7,664

4,106

4,836

-

-

Life insurance broker

32,364

22,926

30,886

9

739

Non-life insurance broker

24,280

33,379

30,857

-

-

325,182

176,491

147,631

1,988

3,936

Non-life insurance agents

Total

Date of Information: As of December 31, 2015

6.2 In an effort to protect the insurance rights of the people, the OIC posted the names of life and non-life
insurance agents and brokers who have applied for license and renewal of licenses for tele-sale of insurance products,
registration as sellers of universal life and unit-linked and those whose licenses have been revoked on the OIC Web
Site. The effort was taken to enable the public and related parties to verify the status of agents/brokers, to see if
they are licensed by the OIC.
6.3 Audited the implementation of agency license examination project of the Thai Life Assurance Association
and the Thai General Insurance Association by following up, inspecting, evaluating and preparing evaluation report
on agency license exam service centers in order to ensure that these agencies that have been assigned by the OIC
are performing the agency license exam service according to the prescribed standard.
6.4 Granted approval to allow 46 agencies to become training institutions for those who would like to apply
for and to renew life and non-life insurance license. The total number of persons who attended the training was
393,686. Moreover, the OIC also granted an approval to permit 7 institutions to provide seminar on subjects, related
to insurance so that the agents or brokers could use the hours of seminar that they attended to apply for the 4th
renewal of agency/broker license or later. The number of persons who have attended the seminar was 2,686.
6.5 Prepared statistical summary to compare information of the persons who attended training courses to
apply for or to renew the insurance agency/broker license during the year 2013-2915. The OIC also monitored and
inspected the training agencies, authorized by the OIC to ensure that they comply with the OIC Notification
Prescribing Courses and Methods for Life Insurance for Agent and Broker Applicants for License Issuance and
Renewal, B.E. 2556, related to provision of training courses and consulting on the preparation of self-regulation
guideline of each agency.
6.6 The OIC obtained a certification of its quality management system (ISO 9001 : 2009) from Management System
Certification Institute (Thailand : MASCI) for the system of “issuing life insurance and non-life insurance licenses for
agents/brokers”. The OIC passed the assessment for the first time on June 14, 2014 and the OIC, after a new assessment,
gained extension of the certification ISO 9001 : 2008 from August 11, 2014 to August 10, 2017. In 2015, the OIC passed
the first surveillance test on ISO 9001-2008 on March 12, 2015.
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Strategy 2: To strengthen stability and competitiveness of insurance system
1. Risk-based capital (RBC) and financial stability regulation
The OIC revised the Notification of the Insurance Commission Re: Prescribing Types of Capital and Criteria,
Methods and Conditions for Calculation of the Capital of Life Insurance Companies, B.E. 2558 as follows.
1) Insurance company must maintain RBC capital for insurance risk of long-term contract at an amount equal
to the different sum between net long-termed policy obligation at the confidence grade of 95th percentile less the
net long-termed insurance policy obligations at the confidence grade of 75th percentile, as computed by the gross
premium valuation method.
2) Insurance company must maintain additional capital for surrender risk capital charge (SRC) in a case where
the surrender value of all insured is more than the risk-based capital that occurred from the normal business
operation combined with insurance reserve in accordance with the Notification on Asset and Liability Valuation of
Insurance Company, as amended by the Notification of the Insurance Commissioner, Prescribing Rules and
Procedures, Methods and Conditions for the Preparation of Risk-Based Capital Report by Life Insurance Company
(No. 3) and Non-Life Insurance Company (No. 6), dated July 2, 2015.
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2. Analysis and auditing of insurance company
The OIC took the following initiatives in order to supervise and promote insurance company to have financial
stability, operational efficiency, transparency, trustfulness and protection of the public insurance rights. The OIC
took the following steps.
2.1 Analysis of insurance company’s financial stability: The OIC adopted the Early Warning System: (EWS) as
indicator for regulating and supervising financial condition of insurance company by reviewing the financial report,
capital adequacy report and balance sheet of life and non-life insurance company.
		 Moreover, it was found after the OIC has grouped a total of 86 insurance companies (Information as of
Q1-3 of 2015) that financial stability of a number of 84 companies met the prescribed standard while 2 companies
would be closely monitored by the OIC. Followings are tiers of companies, set by the OIC.
		 Tier 1: Normal, totaling 67 companies
		 Tier 2: Out-patient, totaling 11 companies.
		 Tier 3: In-patient, totaling 6 companies
		 Tier 4: ICU, totaling 2 companies.
		 The OIC has been monitoring companies in the risk group and has taken regulatory action according to
the level of risk. In the case of 2 companies in Tier 4, the OIC has exercised its authority, granted under Section 52
of the Insurance Act to order both companies to stop the business operation temporarily and to correct their
financial and operational condition.
2.2 Risk-based Audit: This is a process of auditing to identify the company’s risks and set up the scope of
audit according to the company’s key business activities. The audit focused on corporate governance, risk
management, internal control of key business activities, financial standing and compliance. The audit is general in
scope. However, it can be specific or in-depth in certain activities whose risks have significant impact on financial
standing and operation of the company. In such case the OIC shall consider prescribing composite risk rating.
		 In 2015, the OIC completed the audit of 15 non-life insurance companies and it was found that most
companies had the overall risk level in Tier 3 (Medium). These companies have secured financial standing and
satisfactory level of corporate governance. However, the weaknesses were found in internal control system and
operation but they did not pose significant impact on the companies’ financial standing. The OIC already notified
the companies of the findings and they are being corrected.
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2.3 Limited Audit: This is a process to audit according to the issues found in the financial statement, financial
ratio in the early warning system, complaint and other information. The audit focused on accounting, related internal
control and compliance. The audit was limited to issues of interest but conducted in an in-depth manner base on
the early warning system guideline. The audit was conducted on 13 companies and focused on insurance system
and claim payment. However, a following up on the progress of correcting the issues found in the previous audit
was also conducted on 6 companies and it was found that:
		 The operation system of most insurance companies exposed to medium level of risk and the OIC
already ordered them to be corrected.
		 Two non-life insurance companies have high risk level and the Insurance Commissioner has issued an
order under Section 52 to instruct both companies to temporarily suspend their business.
2.4 Prepared and analyzed the quarterly and yearly Thai insurance business report to enable the stakeholders
and the public to know the movement in insurance business in Thailand at any period of time. The report provides
information on the growth or contraction of the business as well as the overall stability of insurance business which
can be used in economic stimulus plan of the country.

3. Preparing the Notification of the Insurance Commission on Rules and Procedures, Methods
and Conditions on Making Compensation Payment According to Insurance Policy by
General Insurance Company, B.E. 2559 and the Notification of the Insurance Commission
on Rules and Procedures, Methods and Conditions for Making Compensation Payment
According to Life Insurance Policy, B.E. 2559.
In order to strengthen the efficiency of risk management system of insurance company and improve the standard
of services acceptable for the people and the insured and to build confidence on insurance business, a fair and
quick compensation payment process that is correct, fair and quick, to help relief the suffering and loss of the
related parties is very important. As a result, the OIC has prepared the Notification of the Insurance Commission on
Rules, Procedures, Methods and Conditions on Making Compensation Payment According to Insurance Policy by
General Insurance Company, B.E. 2559 and the Notification of the Insurance Commission on Rules and Procedures,
Methods and Conditions for Making Compensation Payment According to Life Insurance Policy, B.E. 2559. The
Chairman of the Insurance Commission signed these notifications on January 29, 2016 and they were published in
the Government Gazette on March 8, 2016. In 2016, the OIC planned to audit non-life insurance companies in order
to find out if the claim management process of the companies are in compliance with the law.

4. Preparing the Notification of the Insurance Commission Guideline for Approving the
Establishment of Branch Office in Foreign Countries by Life and Non-Life Insurance Companies.
The Office of the Insurance Commission prepared the Notification of the Insurance Commission on Guideline
for Approving the Establishment of Branch Office in Foreign Countries by Life and Non-Life Insurance Companies,
dated June 25, 2558 and has informed Thai Life Assurance Association, Thai General Insurance Association and
related agencies. The OIC also followed up on compliance to this guideline by insurance companies.
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5. Preparing the rules and procedures for non-life insurance business joint-venture regulation
In order to help Thai insurance companies to be prepared to expand their business into other ASEAN countries
and the Office of the Insurance Commission can supervise the business operation of the subsidiaries of those
insurance companies, the OIC therefore conducted a study on the rules and procedures group-wide supervision,
adopted by the Bank of Thailand and regulatory agencies in Singapore and Malaysia. The OIC also met with the BoT
in order to learn about the principle and the scope of the group-wide supervision in financial sector as well as
information on equity holding of insurance companies for joint-venture of insurance business in foreign countries
and the establishment of representative office in foreign country. The OIC also prepared the OIC Notification on
Practical Guidelines for Approving Equity Holding for Joint Venture with Foreign Insurance Company by Life and
Non-Life Insurance Company which became effective on September 3, 2015.

6. Preparing subordinate laws in English language
The Office of the Insurance Commission implemented a project to prepare subordinate laws in English language
with a view to be ready for the beginning of ASEAN Economic Community and to provide service to the business
and insurance personnel as well as the people in the country and overseas. The OIC hired the Baker McKenzie
Co., Ltd., which is a law firm that has the knowledge and expertise in insurance law and the use of English language
law as a consultant. So far, the company has translated insurance 85 laws and subordinate laws, totaling 760 pages.
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7. Consultation on Thailand Future Fund
The Office of the Insurance Commission attended a meeting with the State Enterprise Policy Office, the
Ministry of Finance, the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Social Security Office, Government
Pension Fund and the Thai Life Assurance Association to discuss, exchange views and provide recommendations
on the establishment of Thailand Future Fund.

8. International cooperation
8.1 Cooperation with Regulatory Agencies in Various Countries.
		 Senior executives of the OIC and business sector joined a study tour to Luang Prabang, the Lao People’s
Democratic Republic between March 18-20, 2015. The objectives of the trip was to learn and to exchange knowledge
and views on insurance investment opportunities, economic situation in Laos, conditions and requirements for
establishing insurance business and business license application process for foreign business.
		 A group of representatives of the Ministry of Finance, Lao People’s Democratic Republic and the World
Bank visited the Office of the Insurance Commission between May 20-22, 2015 to study about Disaster Risk
Financing and Insurance (DRFI) and the roles and responsibilities of the government and the business in rehabilitation
effort after the occurrence of a damage or loss, caused by disaster, as well as related laws and rules and regulations.
		 On March 24, 2015 and November 24, 2015, a group of OIC executives held a consultation meeting
with representatives of the Financial Services Agency (Japan) in order to develop cooperation and exchange of
information which is important because many Japanese insurance companies have invested in Thailand. The meeting
also discussed a joint-cooperation program on personnel development between the two agencies and exchanged
views on how to develop and promote insurance business to support the aging society, especially by the
government sector.
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8.2 International Meetings/Seminars
		 The OIC Secretary-General attended a seminar on “Enabling Insurance Regulation to Support Economic
Development & Human Dignity” and gave a special lecture on overview of insurance business in Thailand, relations
between ASEAN countries, the development of disaster risk management and micro insurance (PA 200) at the
Global Insurance Forum 2015 ( The 51st Annual Seminar), organized by the International Insurance Society at the
United Nations Headquarters, New York between June 14-17, 2015.
		 Organized the “ASEAN Insurance Training and Research Institute (AITRI) meeting under the topic
“IAIS- Insurance Core Principles: ICPs Assessment) to create knowledge and understanding on the subject and apply
it to insurance business regulation and supervision in Thailand and ASEAN as well as to exchange knowledge and
experience between the participants. The meeting was held on June 22, 2015 at the Pathumwan Princess Hotel,
Bangkok.
		 Attended the “Opportunities and Challenges in Asian Insurance Market” meeting/seminar entitled
“Thailand: Entrance and Opportunities”, held on June 26, 2015 in Tai Pei, Taiwan.
		 Attended the 1st China-ASEAN Summit Forum on Insurance Cooperation and Development, held
between September 15-18, 2015 in China
		 Attended the 18th ASEAN Insurance Regulators’ Meeting (18th AIRM) and other related meeting between
October 27-29, 2015 in Phnom Penh, Cambodia. The meeting features the following topics;
			 The 12th Management Board of AITRI included such topics as activity reports by insurance regulators
and training course for insurance regulators in 2016
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			 Report on relevant decisions of the 19th ASEAN Finance Ministers Meeting (19th AFMM) such as
ASEAN Disaster Risk Financing and Insurance (ASEAN DRFI).
			 ASEAN Insurance Cooperation activities such as the development of insurance business in ASEAN
countries and the evaluation of regulatory framework under the Insurance Core Principles, compliance with
insurance regulation according to IAIS and report on ASEAN insurance information, etc.
			 Reported on the progress of compliance with the Protocol 5 : ASEAN Scheme of Compulsory Motor
Vehicle Insurance and other protocols under the ASEAN Framework Agreement on the Facilitation of Goods in
Transit such as the the progress of compliance with the Protocol 5 : ASEAN Scheme of Compulsory Motor Vehicle
Insurance.
		 Assigned OIC representatives to provide a lecture on insurance knowledge to officers of Ministry of
Finance, Lao People’s Democratic Republic between December 13-16, 2015. The topic of the lecture was
“Regulations on Life Insurance Products and Corporate Intermediary”. The objectives of the lecture were to exchange
knowledge, views and experience and to develop expertise and capability of insurance personnel of the Ministry
of Finance, Lao People’s Democratic Republic.
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Strategy 3: To develop protection of insurance-related benefit of the public
1. Insurance dispute resolution
Types

Complaint Cases

Resolved

%

Life Insurance

3,044

2,709

89.00

Non-life Insurance

9,342

8,929

95.58

Compulsory Auto PA Rider

569

538

94.55

Arbitration

419

407

97.13

13,374

12,583

94.09

Total

Information: As of December 31, 2015

Total number of complaint cases in a period between January to December 2015 was 13,374 of which 12,583
cases or 94.09% were resolved.

2. Preparation of guidebook under the Licensing Facilitation Act for the public
The Office of the Insurance Commission prepared and published a guidebook to lay down the minimum
standard of service, steps and time frame for approval process. The project would enable the public and the
business operators to have easier access to the OIC’s service information as well as to provide a clear standard
and to reduce risks and fraud.

52 Office of Insurance Commission
3. Improving the efficiency in making initial compensation payment to the road accident
victims
Laid out a framework for linking information on medical treatment of road accident victims between the Car
Victims Compensation Fund and the National Health Security Office (NHSO) which acts as a government clearing
house of the 3 main funds, i.e., the Social Security Fund, the National Health Security Fund and the Civil Servant
Medical Benefit Scheme in order to increase the number of out-patients who are eligible to receive medical
benefits from the Victims Compensation Fund. A memorandum of understanding on E-Claim was also signed with
the NHSO in order that the, in case of road accident, the public could exercise their rights easier and more efficiently.
However, the exchange of information shall be implemented carefully without infringing on the right of the public
and all relevant parties. This agreement from all parties shall enhance cooperation to take care of the public in
case of road accidents in the future for it would enable the NHSO to be a central body to complete the emergency
medical cost reimbursement transactions and as a clearing house in the national health care system.

4. Integration of hospital care compensation payment process
The Office of the Insurance Commission in cooperation with the Thai General Insurance Association and the
Road Accident Victims Protection Company Limited organized the E-Claim Award 2014 event on May 27, 2015 that
included training session to improve working efficiency of claim personnel who handled initial stage of claim
payment through E-Claim system and to provide knowledge and understanding on the system to hospital and
insurance companies’ representatives. A memorandum of understanding to link information through computer
database between the OIC and the National Health Security Office was also signed at the event.

5. Cooperation on development of right protection with other agencies
1) A consultation meeting to improve the efficiency of insurance-related consumer protection with the
Secretary-General of the Office of Consumer Protection Board of Thailand on Tuesday, November 10, 2015. The
focus of the meeting was to set up an IT network to link information between the OIC and the OCPBT by taking
advantage of the OCPBT network that already existed in all areas. Once completed, the project would improve
consumer protection efficiency, accuracy, fairness and speed as well as the public knowledge and understanding
on their insurance-related rights. This consultation meeting would also lead to a signing of a memorandum of
understanding to promote insurance knowledge and rights of the consumers.
2) A consultation meeting to increase technical cooperation on dispute resolution and dispute settlement
through reconciliation and arbitration with the Secretary-General of the Court of Justice on Thursday, November 5,
2015 in order to improve working efficiency of OIC personnel in the central and regional areas.
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Strategy 4: To develop insurance infrastructure
1. Development of human resource system

Laying down human resource development system that included personnel planning and analysis and
career advance by hiring the Hay Group Co., Ltd. to implement the project. The new organizational structure and
personnel position have already been applied and followings are activities which have been implemented according
to the action plan.
		 1. Summary of challenges and impacts that would occur after the changes in organizational and position
structure have taken place.
		 2. Laid out management tactics of the impacts that must be addressed urgently.
		 3. Laid out management tactics of the impacts that must be addressed at later stage.
		 4. Steps to implement the impact management tactics.
		 5. Analyzed the sub-value chain of works in each line of work from the level of the assistant SecretaryGeneral and prepared the IRMA detail.
		 6. Conduct work value analysis
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Improving the working performance evaluation method of individual staff by focusing on 2 areas, i.e., the
KPIs which consisted of 3 levels: 1) office level, agency level and individual level and competency evaluation. The
evaluation score was proportional to the level of position in order to achieve the laid out goals and to develop
the knowledge and capability of the staff.
In 2015, the Office of the Insurance Commission provided one scholarship to a staff with good educational
and career performance achievement to study in a graduate degree at the University of Southampton.
Organized activities to adjust behavior according to organization value, totaling 12 activities including a
lecture on “Realizing Who You Are in the OIC” and “The OIC: Moving Far Ahead in Unity”

2. Development of insurance-related laws
The Office of the Insurance Commission has engaged in the development of life and non-life insurance master
laws through training and seminar sessions in order to create an understanding on the principles and rationale of
those master laws and their revision as well as the supervision and regulation of life and non-life insurance
companies. The laws encompassed provisions to lay down a strong structure to ensure corporate governance of
insurance company, starting from the establishment and during the operation to the end of business operation.
They also included the auditing of insurance company according to the measure to interfere and correct the
financial and operational standing of the company, the supervision of intermediaries and the principles of the Life
Insurance Act (No. 3), B.E. 2558 and the Non-Life Insurance Act (No. 3), B.E. 2558 which became effective on March
5, 2015. The new insurance acts contained a revision on the structure of shareholders and members of the
company’s board in order to strengthen the insurance business and a provision allowing the Life and Non-life
Insurance Fund to pay to the eligible debtor the debt, occurred from insurance contract, on behalf of life or nonlife insurance company whose business license has been revoked without having to wait for the payment to be
made after the completion of bankruptcy process. The new laws also authorize the Life/Non-life Insurance Fund
to borrow or issue financial instrument according to the rules and procedures, methods and conditions, prescribed
by the fund’s Board and to become the liquidator, as appointed by the Office of the Insurance Commission. The
OIC organized a training/seminar session for insurance personnel and relevant parties including the OIC staff at the
Swissotel Le Concorde Hotel on March 30, 2015.

3. Development of marine insurance law
The Office of the Insurance Commission has appointed a committee to conduct a study on the necessity to
draft the Marine Insurance Act, B.E……which would become effective on November 30, 2015. The law would help
develop, promote and improve the standard of marine insurance in Thailand to be on par with international
practice. The appointed committee had a responsibility to study the necessity and how to develop marine insurance
law. It held the meeting No. 1/2558 on December 15, 2015.
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4. Development of Insurance Bureau System (IBS)
The Office of the Insurance Commission conducted a study prepared the establishment of the Insurance
Bureau System to be an insurance database that helps support the supervision and promotion of insurance business
and the operation of insurance companies, including the marketing conducts for underwriting and claim payment
process, the calculation of insurance reserve, risk management and the rating of premium according to risk level in
advance of pricing liberalization in the future, the improvement of operation in insurance business and public trust
among the public and relevant industries both in the country and overseas. The contractor has completed the
software programming and testing process. The project is in the process of testing its security system and the OIC is
preparing the industrial wide test.

5. Development of OIC Web Site
The Office of the Insurance Commission has improved its Web Site: www.oic.or.th in order to facilitate a more
effective and convenient search of information. The newly improved web site will be available for service on
December 3, 2015.
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6. Development of risk management and internal control system and tools
The Office of the Insurance Commission has developed risk management and internal control system and
tools as follows.
6.1 Developed the OIC’s 2015 risk management plan, based on the information and conclusion made at the
Risk Management Workshop 2014 and has identified the risks in the OIC operation, conducted an assessment on
opportunities and impacts at all level in the agency and prescribed the guidelines to manage those risks which will
be followed up every quarter.
6.2 Developed organizational risk management policies and posted them on the OIC Intranet system. The
OIC has joined hands with the consulting firm, PwC to review and analyze the risk management framework and
prepare rules and procedures and a guideline for risk management and internal control in each level of works in
the OIC. Some of the important contents include: 1) roles and responsibility for risk management at each level, 2)
Improving risk management process to be in accordance with the code of good conduct and the explanation on
risk factors, risk incidents and impacts.
6.3 Organized training sessions to promote corporate governance and enterprise risk management such as
the training session on “Corporate governance” in which Dr. Bundit Nijthaworn, the President of the IOD Institute
was an invited speaker on February 24, 2015, the intermediate level training course on “Risk Management” in which
Khun Warunee Preedanon from PwC was the speaker on February 26, 2015 and training for junior executives on
“Enterprise Risk Management Strategies and Their Application for 2016 with Khun Somnuk Wiwatana as the speaker
on November 13-14, 2015.

7. Insurance skill survey 2015
The Office of the Insurance Commission in cooperation with the National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA) commissioned student in graduate level of the Faculty of Applied Statistics to conduct a study
and survey on life insurance skills that included knowledge and understanding, behavior and attitude on life
insurance of the people. The collected information shall be used for the development of insurance industry and
to be used by the OIC to set regulatory directions and strategies to promote public knowledge and understanding
as well as access and trust on insurance system. The survey was conducted from 3,004 sample groups that included
government officials, state enterprise employees and private company staff in Bangkok and surrounding provinces.
The survey team has prepared the study report and recommendations of the life insurance skills survey entitled
“Knowledge on Life Insurance of People in Bangkok and Surrounding Provinces” to be presented at the Academic
Seminar on Insurance 2015 on Thursday, November 19, 2015 at the Swissotel Le Concorde Hotel.

8. Development of insurance knowledge
8.1 The Office of the Insurance Commission has developed the insurance knowledge training curriculum for
insurance for people inside and outside of the agency on insurance, finance and investment, risk management and
other relevant subjects as follows.
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		 Insurance Supervisory Curriculum: This curriculum is designed to provide the junior and intermediate
executives with knowledge and understanding on insurance, insurance business operation, risks and insurancerelated laws to prepare and develop knowledge for OIC personnel. A total number of 500 executives have
completed the 8 courses of this training.
		 Advanced Insurance Training Curriculum: This course is designed for outside persons and so far a total
of 93 persons have completed the course. The objectives of this course are to foster relationship and create a social
network for leaders in government and private sectors who have important roles in driving the insurance system to
be more accessible to all levels of people and to develop insurance industry as an important driving forces of
social and economic development. The Advanced Insurance Training Course No. 5/2558 was inaugurated on May
19, 2015.

8.2 An academic seminar on insurance for the year 2015 was organized at the Swissotel Le Concorde Hotel
on Thursday, November 19, 2015. The event was presided over by Mr. Somchai Sajjaponse, the Permanent
Secretary of Finance. The event also included the announcement of 2 research study project which were selected
by the Selecting Committee to receive the awards. The study project that won the 1st prize award was “On
Approximating the Ruin Probability and the Minimum Initial Capital of the Finite-Time Risk Process by Separated
Claim Technique of Motor Insurance” and the complimentary award was: “A Condition for Reducing the Finite-Time
Ruins Probability under Proportional Reinsurance and the Minimum Initial Capital Problem under Investment
Control in the Discrete-Time Surplus Processes / The Minimizing the initial capital for the discrete-time surplus
process with investment control under alpha-regulation”.
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Results of a Survey on Service Quality of the OIC in the 12 Month Period of 2015
The Office of the Insurance Commission has conducted a public survey to learn about the level of satisfaction
of those who have used the OIC services since 2010. The purpose is to use the feedback of the service recipients
to improve the quality of the OIC services in order that they are more responsive to the needs and expectation of
the service recipients. The survey results were also used as one of the agency’s KPIs.
The survey was conducted in both the central and the provincial areas and covered 3 areas, i.e., fairness,
service quality and access to service, 3 procedures, i.e., 1) individual agency/broker licensing and renewal service,
2) corporate agency/broker licensing and renewal service, 3) application for changes in registration-related business,
4) insurance dispute resolution and 5) the Hot Line 1186 service. During the period of 12 months in 2015, the OIC
service was rated very satisfactory or 4.58 out of 5.
In 2015, the Office of the Insurance Commission also conducted a survey on the satisfaction of service recipients
for the services related to insurance business approval process performed by the OIC in the central areas that
include the following work process: 1) life insurance product approval, 2) non-life insurance product approval,
3) application to change registration, 4) the placement and withdrawal of insurance reserve by insurance companies,
5) application for opening branch office of insurance company. During the period of 12 months in 2015, the OIC
service was rated very satisfactory or 4.29 out of 5.
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In 2015, insurance business in Thailand saw a slight expansion of 5.46%, compared with
the previous year, of which 6.91% and 1.92% were from life and non-life insurance sectors,
respectively. The business was affected by political situation in the country and a slowdown of
world economy that caused public demand for insurance products, consumers’ confidence and
the country’s GDP to be lower.
The Office of National Economic and Social Development Board forecast that in 2016, the Thai economy will
grow at the rate of 2.8% to 3.8%. Based on the time series analysis, Box-Jenkins method, the Office of the Insurance
Commission expected that the total direct premium earning of Thai insurance business in 2016 will grow by about
8.02% or a total value of 801,923 million Baht of which 584,116 million Baht, representing a growth of 8.02% is from
life insurance business and 217,807 million Baht or a growth of 4.12% is from non-life insurance business.
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Audit Committee’s Report
The Audit Committee consists of 4 members appointed as qualified experts by Insurance Commission and
independent members. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mrs. Tarisa Watanagase. Other members of the
Audit Committee are Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich, Mr. Paiboon Siripanoosatien and Mrs. Wanee Tassanamontien and
Mr. Kiattisak Khamsamarn, a Senior Director of Internal Inspection, as Secretary of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee has performed all of the duties according to the scope of duties and responsibilities,
specified in the charter of the Audit Committee and those, assigned by the Insurance Commission. In 2015, the
Audit Committee held a total of 5 meetings to discuss relevant agenda with the internal audit department, the
general administration department and secretary of the Committee, assigned to conduct an assessment of internal
control and risk management. The auditors were at liberty to perform their duties with the full cooperation of all
divisions of the OIC. The works, performed by the Audit Committee can be summarized as follows:
1. Review the effectiveness of internal operations concerning 2015 quarterly and yearly financial reports before
submitting them for consideration by the Insurance Commission to ensure that and the process to prepare such
financial reports is accurate, reliable and is in compliance with the generally accepted accounting standard with
sufficient information disclosure.
2. Review the risk management, internal control systems and internal audit operations by engaging in regular
meetings with internal auditors and the secretary Committee, assigned to conduct an assessment of internal control
and risk management. The Audit Commission considers found no significant issue or deficiency and viewed that the
OIC has a risk management scheme and an internal control system that is adequate and can properly support the
OIC to achieve its objectives and goals and to comply with the rules, regulations and policies of the Office.
3. Review the Audit Committee Charter to ensure that it is appropriate, modernized and is in compliance with
organizational environment and international standard.
4. Review to ensure that the operational process of the internal audit department is independent and performs
in compliance with international standard and to ensure efficiency and effectiveness for the maximum benefit of
the organization. The Committee is to review the scope of operation and audit report in 2015 as well as to offer
recommendations on how to improve the efficiency of audit operation and to approve the internal audit report
2015, budget, number of personnel as well as human resource development to ensure suitability and appropriateness.
Based on the performance in the past year, the Audit Committee viewed that the OIC has in place an internal
control and risk management systems that are adequate and without any significant deficiency. The OIC’s
performances were in compliance with the relevant laws and rules and regulations and its financial statement was
prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting standard with adequate information disclosure.

(Mrs. Tarisa Watanagase)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
March 18, 2016
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Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2015
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

Notes

2015

2014

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalent

4.1

542,814,724.10

551,298,164.88

Temporary investments

4.2

3,017,802,098.50

2,277,364,864.94

Receivables

4.3

405,804,338.83

367,677,471.57

Other receivables

4.4

367,640.52

3,315,229.35

Prepaid expenses

4.5

4,473,856.77

9,421,464.47

Other current assets

4.6

9,066,506.66

12,121,669.42

3,980,329,165.38

3,221,198,864.63

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Long-term investments

4.7

594,407,002.90

594,407,002.90

Property, plant & equipment-net

4.8

291,635,495.66

306,589,039.55

Intangible assets-net

4.9

65,849,413.11

25,026,565.93

274,000.00

246,460.00

952,165,911.67

926,269,068.38

4,932,495,077.05

4,147,467,933.01

Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

64 Office of Insurance Commission
Office of Insurance Commission

Balance Sheet (Continued)
As of December 31, 2015
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

Notes

2015

2014

Payables

4.10

17,873,399.13

14,634,333.96

Accrued expenses

4.11

32,567,808.61

26,576,761.12

Other current liabilities

4.12

12,094,040.39

19,682,045.38

62,535,248.13

60,893,140.46

Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Income from property donation

4.13

4,028,836.58

3,931,541.02

Reserve for medical costs of retired staff

4.13

41,917,120.29

32,510,668.25

Service Capital compensation

4.13

400,006,518.56

326,546,223.04

Total non-current liabilities

445,952,475.43

362,988,432.31

Total liabilities

508,487,723.56

423,881,572.77

Equity
Capitals transferred from the Department of Insurance

4.14

120,538,099.76

120,538,099.76

Initial capitals from the government

4.15

100,000,000.00

100,000,000.00

4,203,469,253.73

3,503,048,260.48

Total equity

4,424,007,353.49

3,723,586,360.24

Total liabilities and equity

4,932,495,077.05

4,147,467,933.01

Incomes higher than accumulated expenses

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(Mr. Suthiphon Thaveechaiyagarn)
Secretary-General

(Mr.Chuchat Pramoolpool)
Assistant of the Secretary-General
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Statement of income and Expenditure
For the year ending December 31, 2015
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

Notes

2015

2014

Income
Contributions from insurers

3.1.1 , 4.16

1,505,308,780.49

1,423,271,528.46

Fee income from insurers

3.1.2 , 4.17

202,792,700.00

207,759,600.00

Interest income

85,581,116.52

82,951,056.52

Other income

4,748,876.75

5,807,125.45

1,798,431,473.76

1,719,789,310.43

Total Income
Expenses
Personal expenses

4.18

780,213,336.59

751,940,185.61

Operating expenses

4.19

307,225,143.92

300,665,512.70

Remunerations of the committees and subcommittees

4.20

10,572,000.00

9,827,000.00

1,098,010,480.51

1,062,432,698.31

700,420,993.25

657,356,612.12

Total expenses
Incomes higher than expenses

4.21

Other miscellaneous incomes and expenses
Incomes higher than total miscellaneous expenses

700,420,993.25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

657,356,612.12
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ending December 31, 2015
Unit : Baht

ประเภท

Capital
transferred
from the Dept
of insurance

Outstanding as at 31 December 2013

120,538,099.76

Incomes higher than expenses in 2014
Outstanding as at 31 December 2014
Incomes higher than expenses in 2015
Outstanding as at 31 December 2015

120,538,099.76
120,538,099.76

Initial Capital
from the
government

Incomes higher
(lower) than
accumulated
expenses

Total Eguily

100,000,000.00 2,845,691,648.36 3,066,229,748.12
-

657,356,612.12

657,356,612.12

100,000,000.00 3,503,048,260.48 3,723,586,360.24
-

700,420,993.25

700,420,993.25

100,000,000.00 4,203,469,253.73 4,424,007,353.49

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ending December 31, 2015
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Incomes higher than expenses

700,420,993.25

657,356,612.12

58,152,115.62

58,708,507.54

82.00

16,266.57

(1,147,434.43)

(921,927.26)

Interest incomes

(85,581,116.52)

(82,951,056.52)

Cash from interest

89,134,934.05

93,690,234.63

760,979,573.97

725,898,637.08

(38,126,867.26)

(27,961,450.93)

2,947,588.83

4,051,602.50

264,227.70

(4,780,961.46)

(498,654.77)

(100,673.27)

Reconciled incomes higher (lower) than expenses in the form of
receivable (payable) cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Expenses from adjusted decrease of equipment use
Sale of donated equipment

Incomes higher than expenses before the change in operating
assets and liabilities
Increase or decrease in operating assets and liabilities
Receivables (increase)
Decrease in other receivables
Prepaid expenses decrease (Increase)
Other current assets (increase)
Other non-current assets (increase)

(27,540.00)

-

Increase in payables

3,239,065.17

6,246,060.75

Accrued expenses increase (decrease)

5,991,047.49

(1,641,834.52)
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Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the year ending December 31, 2015
Unit : Baht
ประเภท
Prepaid contribution from insurance companies (decrease)
Arbitral Tribunal payment increased (decrease)
Performance bond increase (decrease)
Cash received in advance (decrease)
Deferred fine payment to the Comptroller General’s Department
increased
Increase in reserve for medical costs of terminated staff
Increase in renumeration according to accrued service costs
Net cash from (used in) operating activities

2015

2014

(12,500.00)

(157,500.00)

1,737,098.00

(1,122,551.00)

(9,285,397.99)

3,789,730.30

(57,205.00)

(287,731.97)

30,000.00

-

9,406,452.04

8,879,830.83

73,460,295.52

73,891,390.89

810,047,183.70

786,704,549.20

(740,437,233.56)

(390,430,993.39)

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash outflow from short-term investment
Cash inflow from long-term investment

-

(192,144,002.90)

Cash outflow from building renovation

(32,760,770.92)

(58,988,529.92)

Cash outflow from purchasing intangible assets

(45,332,620.00)

(17,613,669.84)

(818,530,624.48)

(659,177,196.05)

Cash and cash equivalent net increase (decrease)

(8,483,440.78)

127,527,353.15

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of period

551,298,164.88

423,770,811.73

Cash and cash equivalent at end of period

542,814,724.10

551,298,164.88

Net cash from (used in) investing activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ending December 31, 2015
1. General Information
By virtue of the Insurance Commission Act, the Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) has established on
September 1, 2007 by changing its status from the Department of Insurance, Ministry of Commerce. The OIC is a
state agency which is not a government agency or state enterprise and is under the supervision of the Ministry of
Finance. Its roles and responsibility is to oversee and regulate the insurance business to be in accordance with the
insurance and customer protection principles.
Office of Insurance Commission 22/79 Ratchadaphisek Rd., Chankasem, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900 Thailand.

2. Basic Preparation of Financial Statements
2.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and in accordance with the accounting system specified by the Ministry of Finance whereby the accrual
basis accounting shall be used.
2.2 Accounting period shall be the same as the calendar year, starting January 1 and ending December 31 of
each year.
2.3 Accounting standards
		 The OIC has not exercised the Accounting Standards 19 on employee benefits effective January 1, 2015
since according to the Insurance Commission Act B.E. 2550, Article 19. “The OIC is not under the jurisdiction of the
Labor Protection law, the Labor Relations law, the Social Security law, and the Compensations law. However, OIC
staff and employees are to receive benefits no less than stipulated in the Labor Protection Law, the Social
Security Law and the Compensations Law”.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
The following are significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the OIC financial statements.
3.1 Recognition of revenues
		 3.1.1 Contributions from non-life and life insurance companies are recognized as revenues based on their
contribution rate specified under the Notification of the Insurance Commission Re: Criteria, Procedures, and the
Contribution rate to sent by life and non-life insurance companies to the OIC, effecting January 22, 2008.
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		 3.1.2 Fee incomes are recognized as revenues once OIC receives fee payment.
		 3.1.3 Income from the annual government budget are recognized as revenues after the money has been
transferred from the Comptrollers General’s Department to the OIC account.
		 3.1.4 Interest incomes are recognized as interest accrues based on the effective rate method.
3.2 Expense recognition
		 The expenses are recognized on accrual basis.
3.3 Land, buildings and equipment
		 Land are based on capital cost. Buildings and equipment are based on capital cost on the purchase date
or acquisition date deducted by the accumulated depreciation.
		 Buildings and equipment are recorded as assets with a service life of over 1 year and their depreciation is
calculated on a straight line basis over their estimated length of service time:
		 Buildings
20 years
		 Equipment
5 years
		 Vehicles and accessories
5 years
		 The adjustment of a leased building is recorded as an asset and the depreciation is calculated on a straight
line basis over the period specified in the lease contract.
		 Equipment transferred from the Department of Insurance are stated as net on the transferred date after
deducting the depreciating cost calculated according to above-mentioned guidelines.
		 Increase in current replacement costs, will be included as capital cost of assets. Repair and maintenance
costs are recognized as expenses for a given accounting period.
3.4 Intangible assets
		 Intangible assets include direct expenses on the development of computer software programs as well as
expenses on the purchase of packaged computer software programs under the supervision of the OIC that will yield
economic benefits for over a year, are stated at cost less amortization. The amortization is calculated on a straight
line basis to reduce the price on the accounting books of each asset over the estimated service life of the given
assets. The leaseholds are stated at cost after deducting the accumulated amortization. The amortization is
calculated on a straight line basis over the period of the leasehold as follows:
		 Computer software
5 years
		 Leasehold of buildings as per actual period but not exceeding 10 years
3.5 Materials under 5,000 baht per unit on the purchase date can be considered as expenses for the entire
amount under the accounting period.
3.6 Estimated liabilities
		 The OIC will document the estimation of liabilities when such liabilities were developed as a result of a
past incident when there is the possibility that the office will lose some economic resources to resolve such
liabilities, and when the value of such liabilities can be accurately estimated.
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3.7 Non-Current liabilities
		 3.7.1 Donated Properties
			 The OIC registered donated properties as assets and liabilities under income account pending
recognition, which will then eventually be recognized as donated revenues based actual value at each accounting
period.
		 3.7.2 Reserve for medical expenses of retired employees
			
According to the OIC regulation on medical costs of retired employees B.E. 2553, the OIC is required
to set aside reserve for medical costs of its retired employees, whereas each employee is to have 0.6% of his or
her salary deducted monthly to be pooled as the fund and the OIC is to allocate 0.4% of its annual income prior
to expense deduction to be topped up to the fund at the end of budgetary year after the Office of State
Comptroller’s audit.
		 Contribution to the retired employees’ medical expense project was recognized as expense.
		 3.7.3 Remuneration based on service costs in the past
			
The obligation of the OIC on remuneration based on service costs in the past project is under a
review by the Administrative Court. The estimated liabilities have, thus, been recognized in accordance with the
OIC’s Regulation on remuneration based on service costs in the past B.E. 2554.
3.8 Life Support Fund
		 Each employee who is the fund’s member is required to pay an amound of his income to the fund
whereas the OIC is to add an amount of money to the fund according to the fund’s regulation which is operated
by K.Master Pool Fund already registered. The amount of money added up to the fund by the OIC is to be
recognized as expenses in the financial balance.

4. Additional information
4.1 Cash and cash equivalent comprises :
ประเภท

2015

Cash
Deposits

Unit : Baht
2014
400.00

1,600.00

336,000.00

196,600.00

- saving account

342,478,324.10

348,287,958.29

- 3 month fixed account

200,000,000.00

202,812,006.59

542,814,724.10

551,298,164.88

- current account

Total
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4.2 Short-term Investment consists of :
		 As of December 2015 and 2014, fixed deposits in the bank (6 month term but not exceeding 12)
3,017,802,098.50 baht and 2,277,364,864.94 baht, respectively.
4.3 Receivables
		 Receivables consist of the non-life insurance and life insurance companies that are required to send
levies to the OIC under the Insurance Commission Notification on Criteria, Procedures, and the Levy Rate to Be
Submitted by the Non-life and Life insurance Companies to the Office of the Insurance Commission, issued on
January 22, 2008, as follows:
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

2014

Receivables - non-life insurance companies

133,580,624.67

129,552,522.43

Receivables - life insurance companies

272,223,714.16

238,124,949.14

405,804,338.83

367,677,471.57

Total
4.4 Other receivables comprised the following:

Unit : Baht
ประเภท
Receivables - petty cash

2015

2014

115,850.00

2,490,950.00

Receivables - fine payment for violating the OIC Act

-

35,617.50

Receivables (loans) - Flood relief project

-

713,000.00

Other receivables
Total

251,790.52

75,661.85

367,640.52

3,315,229.35
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4.5 Prepaid expenses
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

2014

Prepaid expenses - lease of assets

3,190,577.64

7,847,935.42

Prepaid expenses - premium cost

1,283,279.13

1,573,529.05

Total

4,473,856.77

9,421,464.47

4.6 Other current assets comprised the following:
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

2014

971,002.95

473,374.54

Accrued rental income receivable

11,292.00

10,265.64

Accrued bank interest receivable

8,084,211.71

11,638,029.24

9,066,506.66

12,121,669.42

Computer equipment

Total

4.7 Long-term investments
		 As of December 2015 and 2014, the balance of the 1 year fixed deposit in the bank amounted to
594,407,002.90 and 594,407,002.90 baht, respectively.

264,350,565.42

52,159,576.45

186,193,236.21

66,262,196.03

51,930,541.98

Building expansion and
renovation

Office equipment

Computers

Vehicles

Other equipment

647,808,268.09

19,163,334.00

Buildings

Total

7,748,818.00

Beginning of
period

Land

Type

34,005,500.91

31,299,704.00

-

131,759.00

1,325,924.53

1,248,113.38

-

-

Increase

52,738,887.70

265,598,678.80

19,163,334.00

7,748,818.00

End of period

45,943,561.46

68,992,513.30

4,972,721.46

-

Beginning of
period

83,201,252.10

66,262,196.03

39,749,564.19

56,971,255.93

1,567,731.07 680,246,037.93 341,219,228.54

28,993.88

-

792,123.91 185,532,871.30 124,589,612.20

746,613.28

-

-

-

Decrease

Cost price

4.8 Land, buildings and equipment-net
		 As of December 31, 2015 Land, buildings and equipment-net comprised the following

48,958,962.80

8,687,743.14

7,665,467.00

15,949,816.62

1,956,620.33

13,741,149.01

958,166.70

-

Increase

47,153,593.51

48,408,316.45

64,636,722.93

34,792,935.65

1,625,473.10

45,785,512.39

5,585,294.19

1,567,649.07 388,610,542.27 291,635,495.66

28,990.88

-

13,232,445.84

7,748,818.00

82,733,662.31 182,865,016.49

5,930,888.16

-

Land,
buildings
and
End of period
equipment-net

792,069.91 139,747,358.91

746,588.28

-

-

-

Decrease

Accumulated Depreciation

Unit : Baht
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263,262,610.42

48,994,803.15

132,272,119.48

66,262,197.03

51,207,934.98

Building expansion and
renovation

Office equipment

Computers

Vehicles

Other equipment

59,815,264.92

768,630.00

-

54,314,395.16

3,644,284.76

1,087,955.00

-

-

Increase

52,159,576.45

264,350,565.42

19,163,334.00

7,748,818.00

End of period

40,102,315.80

55,637,321.77

4,014,554.76

-

Beginning of
period

51,930,541.98

66,262,196.03
31,456,998.20

48,740,461.33

918,813.89 647,808,268.09 293,878,420.21

46,023.00

1.00

393,278.43 186,193,236.21 113,926,768.35

479,511.46

-

-

-

Decrease

48,243,355.65

8,338,586.99

8,230,794.60

11,049,276.30

6,311,339.53

13,355,191.53

958,166.70

-

Increase

14,190,612.54

7,748,818.00

45,943,561.46

39,749,564.19

56,971,255.93

12,180,977.79

9,290,940.10

61,603,624.01

6,216,014.99

68,992,513.30 195,358,052.12

4,972,721.46

-

902,547.32 341,219,228.54 306,589,039.55

46,021.00

-

Unit : Baht
Land,
buildings
and
End of period
equipment-net

386,432.45 124,589,612.20

470,093.87

-

-

-

Decrease

Accumulated Depreciation

		 As of year 2015 and 2014, the OIC has a depreciation of 48,958,962.80 baht and 48,243,355.65 baht respectively

588,911,817.06

19,163,334.00

Buildings

Total

7,748,818.00

Beginning of
period

Land

Type

Cost price

		 As of December 31, 2014 Land, buildings and equipment-net comprised the following:
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15,500,000.00

72,031,880.00

4,939,710.00

131,872,625.70

Back Office system

Leasehold

Work under operation system development

Total

59,301,100.00

45,095,880.00

4,920,120.00

-

9,285,100.00

Increase

40,750,490.00

76,952,000.00

15,500,000.00

48,686,135.70

End of period

72,031,880.00

Leasehold

113,858,955.86

18,373,669.84

4,939,710.00

-

-

13,433,959.84

Increase

4,939,710.00

72,031,880.00

15,500,000.00

39,401,035.70

End of period

360,000.00 131,872,625.70

360,000.00

-

-

-

Decrease

96,380,907.88

-

68,337,311.92

12,399,999.96

15,643,596.00

Beginning of
period

-

-

-

-

-

Decrease

10,465,151.89

-

2,632,262.34

3,099,999.04

4,732,890.51

Increase

-

-

-

-

-

Decrease

Accumulated Amortization

9,193,152.82

-

2,636,579.63

-

6,556,573.19

Increase

Accumulated Amortization

		 For the year 2015 and 2014, the OIC has amortization of 9,193,152.82 baht and 10,465,151.89 baht, respectively.

Total

360,000.00

15,500,000.00

Back Office system

Work under operation system development

25,967,075.86

Beginning of
period

System Development

Type

Cost price

-

70,969,574.26

15,499,999.00

20,376,486.51

Beginning of
period

9,285,100.00 181,888,625.70 106,846,059.77

9,285,100.00

-

-

-

Decrease

		 As of December 31, 2014 intangible assets comprised the following:

39,401,035.70

Beginning of
period

System Development

Type

Cost price

4.9 Intangible Assets-net
		 As of December 31, 2015 intangible assets comprised the following:

106,846,059.77

-

70,969,574.26

15,499,999.00

20,376,486.51

End of period

116,039,212.59

-

73,606,153.89

15,499,999.00

26,933,059.70

End of period

25,026,565.93

4,939,710.00

1,062,305.74

1.00

19,024,549.19

Intangible
Assets-net

Unit : Baht

65,849,413.11

40,750,490.00

3,345,846.11

1.00

21,753,076.00

Intangible
Assets-net

Unit : Baht
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4.10 Payables
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

Payables - Life insurance fund deferred fine payments
Payables - Non-Life insurance fund deferred fine payments

150,000.00

2014
-

4,296,980.00

920,125.00

462,072.92

326,753.52

Payables - Levy from non-life insurance companies

7,657,472.39

3,527,296.41

Payables - General

5,306,873.82

9,860,159.03

17,873,399.13

14,634,333.96

Payables - Levy from life insurance companies

Total
4.11 Accrued expenses

Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

Contract Payment

2014

19,668,176.03

12,362,481.96

Utility expenses

1,592,873.53

1,616,336.49

Deferred withholding tax to Revenue Department

3,625,512.80

3,349,661.34

Operating Expenses

7,681,246.25

9,248,281.33

32,567,808.61

26,576,761.12

Total

		 Most of the 19.67 million Baht service fee is the contract service fee for the management of computerized
traffic information storage to ensure that the security of IT system of the Office of the Insurance Commission is
secured, standardized and easy to be inspected, the fee for servicing the OIC computer network that connects the
central OIC office with its provincial offices and computer and equipment maintenance fee.
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4.12 Other current liabilities
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

2014

Deferred fine payment to the Comptroller General’s Department

30,000.00

-

Prepaid levy from insurance companies

98,000.00

110,500.00

Arbitral tribunal payment

8,831,444.09

7,094,346.09

Performance bond

3,129,296.30

12,414,694.29

Other prepaid payment received

5,300.00

62,505.00

Total

12,094,040.39

19,682,045.38

		 An amount of 30,000 Baht fine to be remitted to the Comptroller General’s Office is the amount of fine
that the Office of the Insurance Commission charged insurance companies in pursuance to the Road Accident
Victims Protection Act, B.E. 2535 and its amendment which is not the asset or income of the Office, prescribed in
Section 21 and Section 22 of the Insurance Commission Act, B.E. 2550. The OIC shall therefore remit the amount
to the treasury as State Fund.
4.13 Non-current liabilities
Unit : Baht
ประเภท
Income from property donation
Reserve for medical costs of terminated staff
Remuneration of service costs in the past
Total

2015

2014

4,028,836.58

3,931,541.02

41,917,120.29

32,510,668.25

400,006,518.56

326,546,223.04

445,952,475.43

362,988,432.31

		 The OIC has changed its recording of donated property from original recording as assets and expenses
as a whole sum to recording as assets and liabilities under its income account to be recognized from property
donation. The said income is to be one by one recognized as income from donation according to the proportion
of depreciation of the donated property during each account period.
		 As to reserve for medical costs of retired employees, the OIC’s 9th/2010 Meeting on August 31, 2010 gave
its approval for the Office to set aside its reserve for medical costs of retired employees who joined the project by
allocating 0.4% of its annual income prior to expense deduction at the end of budgetary year after the Office of
State Comptroller’s audit, whereas each member employee is to have 0.6% of his or her salary deducted monthly
to be added up to the reserve fund.
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		 The OIC’s 10th/2010 Meeting on September 13, 2010 and 11th/2010 Meeting on October 2, 2010 approved,
in principle, of provision of renumeration according to service costs in the past as additional reward to those
employees transferred from the Department of Insurance and the Ministry of Commerce in the amount of 679.05
million baht (to be provided 10%/year). The renumeration has been recognized as personnel expenditure along
with the accrued renumeration according to service costs in the past. Such an expenditure has uncertainty of
payment as indicated by the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand in the budgetary year of 2011 according to
the auditor’s report dated April 11, 2012. A total amount of 23.37 million baht has been paid so far.
		

The accrued renumeration as of December 31, 2015 consists of:
Unit : Baht
Accumulated sum
Plus Additional record
Bank deposit interest
Total sum

326,546,223.04
67,503,800.00
5,956,495.52
400,006,518.56

		 The remuneration based on service costs in the past is the payment made by OIC to the employees
upon their retirement according to the OIC’s Regulation on Remuneration according to Service Costs in the Past,
B.E. 2554 (announced on December 28, 2011 and effective as of December 28, 2011). The employees who were
entitled to receive the remuneration filed a lawsuit against the OIC to the Administrative Court, demanding the
remuneration according to the service costs in the past, together with legal interests to the Administrative Court.
The lawsuit is now under the court’s consideration. The detail is shown in the Note to Financial Statement 4.23 A.
Remuneration According to Service Costs in the Past.
4.14 Capital transferred from the Department of Insurance
On September 1, 2007, the Insurance Commission Act, B.E. 2550 became effective and the status of the
Department of Insurance was transformed to the Office of the Insurance Commission. All of the DOI’s staff,
operations, authorities, assets, liabilities, rights and obligations have been transferred to the Office of the Insurance
Commission, based on the account balance as of August 31, 2007. A committee to verify the transfer was appointed
and upon completion, the committee issued a report in 2009 which specified that all assets, transferred from the
Department of Insurance to the Office of the Insurance Commission on the date that the DoI organizational status
was transformed was correct and complete and the total capital, transferred from the DoI was correct and identical
to the received amount of capital, shown in the balance sheet, amounting 120,538,099.76 Baht.
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4.15 Initial capital from the government
In 2008 the government allocated to the OIC the amount of 100,000,000 baht as initial capital.
4.16 Levy from Insurance companies
The Insurance Commission issued a declaration stating that insurance companies must deliver their levy
to the OIC starting from the period of 2008. Levy f rom insurance companies comprises:
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

2014

Levy from non-life insurance companies

520,940,314.77

509,981,139.47

Levy from life insurance companies

984,368,465.72

913,290,388.99

1,505,308,780.49

1,423,271,528.46

Total
4.17 Fee Income from Insurance companies

Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

2014

Application fees for license examination

65,020,200.00

64,210,000.00

License issuance fees

53,325,300.00

53,168,600.00

License renewal fees

59,712,000.00

64,893,200.00

8,699,750.00

7,958,200.00

16,035,450.00

17,529,600.00

202,792,700.00

207,759,600.00

Annual fees for insurance business operations
Income from training fees
Total
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4.18 Personnel Expenses
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

Salaries

2014

587,006,781.38

559,854,361.42

Levy to Thai Provident Fund

81,751,718.89

77,067,126.15

Remuneration based on servicing cost in the past

67,503,800.00

67,503,800.00

Cost of living allowance

11,906,117.36

12,016,645.16

210,000.00

209,354.84

63,870.00

144,990.00

Professional fees

1,432,258.06

1,455,000.00

Educational expenses for employees’ children

1,311,003.25

1,184,526.00

16,981,099.62

14,818,243.24

Educational expenses for employees

1,979,690.01

5,606,298.95

Levy for medical costs of terminated staff

7,193,725.90

6,879,157.24

286,882.00

150,000.00

-

1,979,550.00

2,586,390.12

3,071,132.61

780,213,336.59

751,940,185.61

Special allowance (Sor Por Por)
Overtime and holiday work payments

Healthcare expenses

Allowance for employees affected by flood disaster
Remuneration under MSP Project
Premium for personal insurance
Total

		 In 2015, the OIC had 780.21 million baht as personnel expenditure. Of this amount, 67.50 million baht
was the remuneration based on service costs in the past which was a provisional expense and may not be
reimbursable. The OIC recognized the remuneration based on the cost in the past as personnel expense in the
same amount with the deferred remuneration based on service costs in the past.
		 Allowance for assisting employees’ families worth 286,882.00 baht in cases of employees’ death while
still being in service. Allowance would be paid through respective employees’ group life insurance and group
accident insurance and the OIC would pay for cremation expenses according to OIC Regulation on Assistance
Allowance for Deceased Employees’ Families B.E. 2552.
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4.19 Operating Expenses
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

Office supplies - disposable

2014

11,790,984.75

8,836,910.29

Fuel and oil

5,761,884.74

7,117,630.01

IEC materials

1,791,283.57

2,911,415.81

Other materials

1,110,001.03

2,086,513.34

15,939,329.00

15,968,340.01

Vehicle rentals

9,243,857.15

3,590,166.67

Computers rentals

2,609,000.04

2,609,000.04

384,229.21

407,514.39

19,056,797.41

19,044,988.42

Travel expenses - domestic

4,300,657.90

4,304,945.91

Travel expenses - overseas

14,304,185.66

16,532,954.69

Fee for membership of foreign insurance institutes

1,148,186.00

1,006,232.00

Consultation fees

1,350,000.00

3,410,000.00

Insurance premiums

2,384,468.84

2,012,713.79

Utilities

20,912,909.84

22,429,306.87

Depreciation and amortization

58,152,115.62

58,708,507.54

500,000.00

500,000.00

15,386,841.76

5,371,362.03

1,325,063.84

2,009,117.70

102,710,785.83

103,369,693.18

Asset repair and maintenance

5,013,449.32

5,182,249.48

Taxes

2,055,419.32

1,784,262.30

Expenses - training for insurance agents/brokers

8,564,449.90

10,626,785.05

Allowances for meetings of outside persons

484,000.00

250,000.00

Miscellaneous

945,243.19

594,903.18

307,225,143.92

300,665,512.70

Lease-Asset: Land and Buildings

Receptions and ceremonies
Meeting and seminars

Audit expenses
Public relations expenses
Bank service fees
Outsourcing service

Total
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		 Most of the 9.24 million Baht Vehicle Rental Fee was for the cars, rented for use by the Office of the
Insurance Commission in the central and provincial areas. The expense includes insurance cost, tax and maintenance
cost.
		 Most of the 15.39 million Baht public relations-related expenditure was the production cost of PR
material and media to promote the “PA 200” and the cost for designing and decorating the “Insurance Day”
venue as part of the campaign to provide insurance knowledge to the public in pursuance to the main policies of
the OIC to promote and support the population all over the country to have access to insurance system, to build
a good image to insurance business and to encourage all agencies, related to insurance business to jointly organize
activities to create public awareness on the importance of insurance.
4.20 Remuneration and Allowance for committees and sub-committees
Unit : Baht
ประเภท

2015

2014

Remuneration - Insurance Commission

5,880,000.00

5,880,000.00

Meeting allowance - Insurance Commission

2,660,000.00

2,915,000.00

Meeting allowance - other committees

200,000.00

64,000.00

Meeting allowance - recruitment subcommittees

468,000.00

304,000.00

Meeting allowance - legal subcommittees

300,000.00

Meeting allowance - other subcommittees

1,064,000.00

664,000.00

10,572,000.00

9,827,000.00

Total

-

4.21 Performance Results
Unit : Baht
2015

2014

Income

1,798,431,473.76

1,719,789,310.43

78,642,163.33

4.57

Expenses

1,098,010,480.51

1,062,432,698.31

35,577,782.20

3.35

700,420,993.25

657,356,612.12

43,064,381.13

6.55

Income Higher Than Expenditure

Increase
(decrease)

%

		 In 2015, income of the OIC totaled 1,798,431,473.76 baht while expenses totaled 1,098,010,480.51 baht.
Net gains increased from the previous year 43,064,381.13 baht, with net gains in 2015 and 2014 totaling 700,420,993.25
and 657,356,612.12 baht, respectively.
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4.22 Recategorization
		 Some items in the financial statement for the year ending December 31, 2014 have been recategorized
to match those in the financial statement for the year ending December 31, 2015 as follows:
Existing

New

Amount

Meeting allowance - Insurance Commission
Fines under Non-life Insurance Act

Meeting allowanceOther Committees

Meeting AllowanceOutside Persons

60,000.00

Meeting allowance - Insurance Commission
Fine under Life Insurance Act

Meeting allowanceOther Committees

Meeting AllowanceOutside Persons

60,000.00

4.23 Lawsuit under Court Consideration
		 Those employees who retired and were entitled to receive the remuneration according to service costs
in the past according to the OIC’s Regulation on Remuneration according to Service Costs in the Past, B.E. 2554
(announced on December 28, 2011 and effective as of December 28, 2011) filed a lawsuit against the OIC, demanding
the remuneration according to the service costs in the past, legal interest and severance pay under the Labor Law.
The details are as follows.
A.

Remuneration based on service costs in the past

No.

Name

Amount
(Excluding tax)

1

Mr. Apirak Lengkhayan

3,225,600.00

2

Mrs. Piyanart
Sukumolchan

3

Mrs. Suwattana
Manakul

4

Mrs. Supanit Pisutthipak Not indicated, to be Paid according to
decided by court service costs in the
past plus interests

Details

Date

Notes

In the reviewing
Paid according to
Black case 204/2556
July 4, 2013
service costs in the Black case 59/2557 March 6, 2014 process of the
Administrative
past for 1st and 2nd Red case 216-7/2558 July 1, 2014
Court
sums plus interests
Or 976-977/2558 July 28, 2015 and
for overdue payment
October 20, 2015

Not indicated, to be Paid according to
decided by court service costs in the
past plus interests
4,000,000.00

Case No.

Paid according to
service costs in the
past for 1st and 2nd
sums plus interests
for overdue payment

Black case
292/2557

7 November 2014 In the reviewing

Black case
1925/2557

20 November 2014 In the reviewing

Black case
165/2557

20 November 2014 In the reviewing

process of
Chiang Mai
Administrative
Court
process of
Central
Administrative
Court
process of
Rayong
Administrative
Court
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No.

Name

Amount
(Excluding tax)

5

Mr. Pairat Jantarakran

3,240,000.00

6

Ms. Prapaphan
Kerdlamjiak

7

Details
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Case No.

Date

Notes

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black case
21/2558

3 March 2015

In the reviewing
process of
Songkhla
Administrative
Court

3,000,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black case
580/2558

10 March 2015

In the reviewing
process of
Central
Administrative
Court

Mrs. Anchana
Buranarach

3,454,841.70

Paid according to
service costs in the
past for 1st and 2nd
sums plus interests
for overdue payment

Black case
591/2558

11 March 2015

In the reviewing
process of
Central
Administrative
Court

8

Mrs. Komkai
Thusaranon

4,000,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black case
1572/2558

28 August 2015

In the reviewing
process of
Central
Administrative
Court

9

Mrs. Anongsiri
Phaihang

Not indicated, to be Paid according to
decided by court service costs in the
past plus interests

Black case
1583/2558

1 September 2015 In the reviewing

10 Mrs. Sirikarn
Khamsiraparb

Not indicated, to be Paid according to
decided by court service costs in the
past plus interests

Black case
1584/2558

1 September 2015 In the reviewing

process of
Central
Administrative
Court
process of
Central
Administrative
Court

11 Mr. Vichai Boonmee

1,872,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past for 2nd sums
plus interests for
overdue payment

Black case
1883/2558

27 October 2015 In the reviewing

12 Ms. Chamrueng
Chartsuwan

2,000,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past for 2nd sums
plus interests for
overdue payment

Black case
2008/2558

17 November 2015 In the reviewing

process of
Central
Administrative
Court
process of
Central
Administrative
Court
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B. Payment according to labor laws
		 The OIC Act B.E.2550 Article 19 stipulates that “OIC affairs are not under enforcement of labor laws,
labor relations laws, social security laws and compensation payment laws; however, OIC staff and employees must
gain no less benefits than those stipulated in labor laws, social security laws and compensation payment laws.”
Presently, the OIC has not yet drafted its regulation on compensation payment for employment termination cases,
and this is the reason why some of those retired staff/employees sued the OIC for compensation payment under
labor laws as follows :
No.

Name

Amount
(Excluding tax)

1

Mr. Apirak Lengkhayan

439,979.99

Paid for severance
pay according to
labor law plus
interests

Black case
316/2557

2 December 2014 In the reviewing

2

Mrs. Piyanart
Sukumolchan

1,270,399.20

Paid for severance
pay according to
labor law plus
interests

Black case
315/2557

2 December 2014 In the reviewing

3

Mrs. Supanit Pisutthipak

876,343.00

Paid for severance
pay according to
labor law plus
interests

Black case
188/2557

9 December 2014 In the reviewing

4

Mr. Pairat Jantarakran

1,203,920.00

Paid for severance
pay according to
labor law plus
interests

Black case
193/2557

25 December 2014 In the reviewing

5

Mrs. Suwattana
Manakul

449,040.60

Paid for severance
pay according to
labor law plus
interests

Black case
579/2558

10 March 2015

6

Mr. Sa-Nguan
Preechapat No. 1
Mr. Veeravut
Ngarmjitviriya No. 2
Mr. Pinyo Boonnum
No. 3

425,100.00
453,420.00
990,120.00

Paid for severance
pay according to
labor law plus
interests

Black case
Bor 51/2558

27 January 2015 In the reviewing

Details

Case No.

Date

Notes
process of
Chiang Mai
Administrative
Court
process of
Chiang Mai
Administrative
Court
process of
Rayong
Administrative
Court
process of
Songkhla
Administrative
Court

In the reviewing
process of
Central
Administrative
Court
process of
Central
Administrative
Court

Annual Report 2015

No.

Name

Amount
(Excluding tax)

Details

87

Case No.

Date

Notes

7

Mrs. Anchana
Buranarach

633,688.00

Paid for severance
pay according to
labor law plus
interests

Black case
1088/2558

18 June 2015

In the reviewing
process of
Central
Administrative
Court

8

Ms. Prapaphan
Kerdlamjiak

360,299.98

Paid for severance
pay according to
labor law plus
interests

Black case
1203/2558

6 July 2015

In the reviewing
process of
Central
Administrative
Court

9

Mrs. Sirikarn
Khamsiraparb

931,328.00

Paid for severance
pay according to
labor law plus
interests

Black case
1621/2558

8 September 2015 In the reviewing

613,864.00

Paid for severance
pay according to
labor law plus
interests

Black case
1620/2558

8 September 2015 In the reviewing

10 Mrs. Anongsiri Phaihang

process of
Central
Administrative
Court
process of
Central
Administrative
Court

4.24 Approval of Financial Statement
		 This financial statement was approved for issuance by the Secretary General of the Office of Insurance
Commission on May 25, 2016.
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